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The first building designed specifically to serve as the home:éf the'l-1
chief executive of Georgia was authorized by an Act of the Leglslature Yn '3\AL
1835. From recordings in the Legislative Journal in 1837 John Pell’ andvcr flgﬂ f‘
McClusky (sic) were each paid $100 for the best plan for a house for»theh \ (j
residence of the Governor. Timothy Porter of Farmington, Connectlcut;;superr: F,
intended the erection of the building, which was completed in 1838 at® a'costff~,
of $50,000. It is located in the center of the block facing west on Clark ™’
Street, flanked by Hancock Street on the north and Greene Street on the south
all of these streets being among the original nineteen in the master plan of
‘1 Milledgeville. The addition of a Gothic-style cupola, designed by John Com-—
fort, was made at a later date. Being incompatible with the Greek Revival anch-
itecture of the house, this cupola was removed and a skylight reconstructed
by architect Edward Vason Jones of Albany, Georgia in the early part of the
1960's. With the exception of the wooden blinds that were formerly attached
to the house, today it appears as it did in early engravings, reproduced in
Harper's Weeckly in 1865. Painted white in 1920, it is now restored to the
original color that has been described as a "lovely pink-tinged sunset just
deepening into crimson." Major interior renovations took place, at intervals,
from- 1868,,at”wh1ch _time it ceased to be the home . of _Geoxgia governors, until
most recently. During the 1870's the State rented the building to various
local people. From 1879 until 1890 it was used as a dormitory for cadets
from the Middle Georgia Military and Agriculture College. The cornerstone
for the Georgia Normal and Industrial College was laid on November 27, 1890,
at the site where the Penitentiary had stood. Because of the proximity of
the Mansion to this location, in 1891 the State designated this property for
use as a dormitory and the president's home. It served in this dual role
for more than fifty years. In 1965, by another Act of the Legislature,
$250,000 was approved for the complete renovation and modernization (i.e.,
central heating, air-conditioning, elevator, sprinkler system, etc.) of the
building. The firm of Williams and Dean Architects of Atlanta drew plans
for this work, which was executed by Donald C. Larson, general contractor,
Milledgeville. On September 23, 1967, the ground and first floors were
opened to the public for tours; meanwhile the second floor serves as an
‘apartment for the president of Georgia College.

Exterior

. The facade, a splendid example of the prostyle portico with a pediment,
is the same used by Palladio on the Villa Rotunda, Vicenza, Italy. The Ioniq
order is used in the four solid brick columns, with granlte capitals and "l
bases, that are equally spaced across the porch measuring 32'4"-X 10'8". Th
entablature of the porch maintains a low pitched gable roof. The simple
| .granite-faced entrance has Doric pilasters surmounted by a well-designed
] entablature into which is carved EXECUTIVE MANSION 1838. The front door, of
-hand carved wood, opens and locks with original silver-plated hardware. The
-building consists of two main stories raised on a daylight basement (surrounded
on three sides by a moat) and “anattic floor. The Exterlor walls of brick '
-and |_stucco, traced.to resemble stone blocks, rise from a foundation of granite,
also used as the belt course designating the main floor. Because of its
permanence, granlte has been used entirely as a decorative trim on the exterpor.
Like other formal Greek Revival houses of this period :the outside chimney
. has been eliminated and built on thz interior flusg with the exterior walls.
Windows on the main floors have granite lintels and sills, whereas those on
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John Pell, but upon close examination it was determined that the cost would
be approximately $70,000; therefore, the alternate plan, proposed by a

Mr. Clusky (sic), was selected because the estimated cost for executing was
only $30,000. It has, however, completed at a cost of $50,000. Records

in the Legislative Journal indicate that both Pell and C.B. McClusky (sic)
were each paid $100 for the best plan for the Executive Mansion. Charles B.
‘Cluskey, an Irishman by birth, was a practicing architect in Georgia from
1830-1847. His works gained recognition because they were a direct depar-
ture from the mere conservative designs of rectangular shapec that had beern
generally used in domestic architecture. Notable examples existing in
Savannah today are the Champion-McAlpin-Fowlkes and Sorrel-Weed Houses.

The 0l1d Medical College building of the University at Augusta is considered
one of his masterpieces. Like the Mansion, it is built on the rotondi parti

of the Villa Capra. The Executive Mansion is, without question, his most
pexfect example of the Greek Revival house. Following Cluskey's departure
from Georgia in 1847, he was consulted on expansion of the Capitol and
Executive Mansion in Washington, but his ideas were never used. He died
before 1856. ’

1839-1868

Jared Irwin, the first chief executive residing in the new capital,
occupied a log cabin. Three other house, of clapboards, later served as
the official residence until the present building was completed in 1838.
Governors occupying the Mansion from 1839 to 1868 were: George R. Gilmer,
Charles J. McDonald,George W. Crawford, George E. Towns, Howell Cobb,
Herschel V. Johnson, Joseph E. Brown, James Johnson, Charles J. Jenkins,
and Brigadier General Thomas H. Ruger. Ruger, serving from January to July
1868, was appointed by General George H. Mecade, Commander of the Third
Military District which Georgia was a part during Reconstruction. General
William T. Sherman established his headquarters in the Executive Mansion
in November of 1864. From that time through Reconstruction the stately
Mansion suffered many tragic moments. On May 9, 1865 Governor Brown was
arrested in the building by Federal troops. Pt

1869-1971 A ‘ : !
The Executive Mansion suffered great abus¢ when it was being used as
a poarding house in the 1870's. In 1879 the State of Georgia loaned the

property to the newly established Georgia MiliFary and Agriculture College.
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the basement level have granite sills and the belt course substltutes for the
lintels. Surrounding the house is a wide simple entablature deceptively
supported at the four corners of the building and where the bay is joined. Thd
roof, originally copper, was replaced with tin in 1868 by S.F. Hancock and
Father, of Milledgeville. The dome, constructed in the attic, is not an out-
standing feature of the exterior. The roof is slightly angled to a circular
skylight projecting from the dome.
a&. South View:
A small st stoop, 5'X5', with ten steps, designated the entrance to the main
floor from the garden. Entry to the ground level is beneath this. The
overhang is arched and partially brick-faced.
b. East View:

_ The } bay structure, so popular in this era, is used here and is in perfect
symmetyy with the total exterior design. It runs from the roof line to
ground level, from where one enters a foyer, designated as the Carriage
Entrance.

c. North View: .
A reconstructed brick wall (resembling one in an early photograph, c. 1888)
encloses a brick patio, from which one enters into the State Dining Room.
d. West View: (Ground Floor)
Entry “here is beneath the front porch, which prov1des a breezeway. A room
enclosed underneath the front steps has an open doorway and three recessed
arches that probably served as a wine cellar. Legend holds that this was
the starting point of a tunnel that terminated at the Cap1tol but there is
no evidence to substantiate this.

Interior :
Frederick Doveton Nichols has expressed the architectural significance
of this building in his Early Architecture of Georgia: "Outside of Virginia,

the finest Jefferson inspired design and one of the most sophisticated plans
in Georgia is the Governor's Mansion in Milledgeville." A variety of room
shapes - octagonal, round, rectangular and square - divide the floor plan. On¢
enters a broad entrance hall and passes into a central rotunda. A coffered
dome, of plaster, with gilded ornamental design outlining trapezoidgl shaped
panels, is the most commanding interior feature. A projecting canthlevered
balcony encompasses the circumference of this room. In the Drawing Room are
matching mantels of black Italian marble with broad flat pilasters and anthemi¢n
capitals. These fireplaces have linings of cast iron. Three acanthus-designej
medallions, measuring 4' in diameter, are recessed in the ceiling. Identical
medallions appear in the entrance hall and parlor. A single recent addition
to this room is the eleven-member dentil molding. An octagonal room is on axig
with the rotunda. Though not altered structurally,' it serves as entry to a
small water closet and storage closet added during the last renovation. A
floor replacement has been made here due to a fire that occurred in the 1870's
The main stair, placed in a side corridor is flanked by two rooms. The Parlor
and Diring Room, designed as perfect cubes 24' X 24', are unaltered except for

|

|
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7. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION, page 3.

an elevator shaft that has been placed in the corner of the dining room. "  Up-
stairs the President's Apartment has been adapted to family living. Downstairg
one sees the original winter kitchen, typical of Cluskey's plans. This fire-
place was revealed when plastering was removed in the early 1950's. Beautiful
hand-made brick doubled for hearth and floor. Entry to a minor stair is in an
adjoining room. This service stair, placed in a concealed area, by-passes the
main floor and exits into a hall on the second floor. The State Dining Room
corresponds in size to the Drawing Room. Early plans indicate that sexvants'
quarters also comprised a part of this basement area.

N
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8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE, page 2.

Scars of that occupation can be seen in the initials that were carved in the
lovely marble mantels. Georgia Normal and Industrial College was chartered
in 1889 and following construction of the first academic building the Mansion
was occupied as the first dormitory and president's residence for that insti-

tution. All succeeding presidents have continued to live in this building.

The 014 Governor's Mansion has had local, state and national
architectural, historical and cultural significance from 1838
until the present. On September 23, 1967, the ground and first
floors were opened to the public for tours. The second floor
serves as an apartment for the President of Georgia College.
After visiting hours for tourists are over,the President and
college have access to the first two floors for receptions.

William R. Mitchell, Jr.

at
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